Public Document Pack
Democratic Services Section
Legal and Civic Services Department
Belfast City Council
City Hall
Belfast
BT1 5GS
19th November, 2021
MEETING OF STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Dear Alderman/Councillor,
The above-named Committee will meet in the Council Chamber and remotely via Teams
on Tuesday, 23rd November, 2021 at 5.30 pm, for the transaction of the business noted
below.
You are requested to attend.
Yours faithfully,

SUZANNE WYLIE
Chief Executive

AGENDA:
1.

Routine Matters
(a)

Apologies

(b)

Minutes

(c)

Declarations of Interest

2.

Schedule of Meetings 2022 (Pages 1 - 2)

3.

Notices of Motion Received for Council on 1st December (Pages 3 - 16)

4.

Local Resolution Protocol (Pages 17 - 18)

-2-

Agenda Item 2
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Subject:

Schedule of Meetings 2022

Date:

23rd November, 2021

Reporting Officer:

John Walsh, City Solicitor

Contact Officer:

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer

Restricted Reports
Is this report restricted?

Yes

No

X

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?
After Committee Decision
After Council Decision
Sometime in the future
Never
Call-in
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?

Yes

X

No

1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To advise the Committee of the dates and times of the meetings of the Standards and Business
Committee between January and December, 2022.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is requested to approve the schedule of meetings as outlined.

3.0

Main Report
Key Issues

3.1

The following dates have been identified for meetings of the Standards and Business
Committee for the period from January to December, 2022, with a commencement time of
5.30pm:

Page 1



Thursday, 6th January



Thursday, 27th January



Tuesday, 22nd February



Thursday, 24th March



Tuesday, 26th April



Tuesday, 24th May



Tuesday, 28th June



Tuesday, 23rd August



Tuesday, 27th September



Tuesday, 25th October and



Thursday, 24th November

Financial and Resource Implications
3.2

None associated with this report.
Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment

3.3

4.0

None associated with this report.

Documents Attached
None

Page 2

Agenda Item 3
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Subject:

Notices of Motion Received for Council on 1st December

Date:

23rd November, 2021

Reporting Officer:

John Walsh, City Solicitor

Contact Officer:

Jim Hanna, Senior Democratic Services Officer

Restricted Reports
Is this report restricted?

Yes

No

X

If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?
After Committee Decision
After Council Decision
Sometime in the future
Never

Call-in
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?

Yes

X

No

1.0

Purpose of Report/Summary of Main Issues

1.1

To consider the Notices of Motion received for the meeting of the Council on 1st December.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

The Committee is asked to consider the motions and agree to either adopt the motions, refer
for debate at the Council meeting, reject the motions or refer the motion directly to a
Committee.

Page 3

3.0

Main Report
Key Issues

3.1

3.2

3.3

The Committee will be aware Standing Orders 13 (m) to (r) as agreed by the Council at its
meeting on 4th October is as follows:

(m)

The Standards and Business Committee will have delegated authority to adopt or
reject Notices of Motion. The Lord Mayor will indicate at the Council meeting those
Notices of Motion that have been considered by the Standards and Business
Committee and whether such Notices of Motion were rejected or adopted. In
either case, the proposer only may speak on the issue at Council.

(n)

The Standards and Business Committee will refer all Notices of Motion directly to
a standing committee when the matter to which the Notice of Motion refers falls
within the remit of that committee. At Council, the Lord Mayor will indicate that the
Notice of Motion was received and referred. There will be no speakers on such
Notices of Motion at Council.

(o)

The Standards and Business Committee will refer Notices of Motion for
consideration by full Council when the Notice of Motion relates to a strategic or
constitutional matter.

(p)

The Standards and Business Committee will not have the power to amend the
wording of any Notice of Motion that is being referred to the full Council for debate.

(q)

Any amendments to Notice of Motions to be proposed at the Council are to be
furnished at least one day in advance of going to the full Council and will be
circulated to Party Group Leaders in advance of the Council meeting.

(r)

In referring any matter to the full Council, the Standards and Business Committee
may determine to restrict contributions to the debate in relation to any Notice of
Motion to one per political party. At the Council meeting, the Lord Mayor will
clearly indicate if the restriction applies.

The following five motions have been received:
1. Street Tree Planting – Councillor McMullan
Community and Neighbourhood Services are currently progressing a tree strategy for the
city which would pick up on the issue of street trees and the management and maintenance
requirements – refer to People and Communities Committee.
2. Illegal Puppy Trade – Councillor Flynn
Calling on the Ministers to undertake a number of actions – no cost implications to the Council
– can be adopted by the Committee or referred to the Council for debate.
3. Insulation Inspection and the Provision of Insulation – Councillor Heading

Page 4

Calling on the Minister for Communities to undertake a number of reviews - no cost
implications to the Council – can be adopted by the Committee or referred to the Council for
debate.
4. Winter Fuel Payment Scheme/Retrofitting of Homes – Councillor Ferguson
Calling on the Executive to undertake a number of actions no cost implications to the Council
– can be adopted by the Committee or referred to the Council for debate.
5. Support for Higher Education Staff Strike Action – Councillor Matt Collins
Calling on the Council to support strike action by Higher Education Staff – can be adopted
by the Committee or referred to the Council for debate.

3.4

Financial and Resource Implications
None associated with this report.

3.5

Equality or Good Relations Implications
None.

4.0

Documents Attached

Copies of the Notices of Motion received.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Street Tree Planting
“Noting this Council’s pledge to plant one million trees by 2035 and the ongoing work to deliver
that commitment on our own land, its declaration of a climate emergency in October 2019 and
our commitment to work towards being carbon neutral by 2050. However, as highlighted in
the Belfast Carbon Roadmap Pathway to Net Zero we can close the gap by 2033 through a
range of innovative interventions, including planting trees.
Therefore this Council commits to drastically increasing the number of street trees across the
Belfast City Council area.
Recognising that street tree planting is a function of the Department for Infrastructure, we will
write to the Minister to join us in making this commitment and partner with us in drastically
increasing their number across the city.
Working with our partners we will establish a strategy and action delivery plan (including
maintenance), including setting a target for increasing the number of street trees in each of
the 60 wards that comprise the 10 district electoral areas of Belfast City Council.
We will also write to the Minister for Infrastructure, as well as Ministers for Agriculture,
Environment and Rural Affairs and Communities, to establish a rolling funding scheme for tree
planting, maintenance and accompanying structural works (e.g. footpath widening) to enable
more sites to be viable for street tree planting.
This Council will also join the new call for pledges to the UN Economic Commission for
Europe’s ‘Trees in Cities Challenge’ joining other cities around the world including Barcelona,
Bonn, Victoria (Canada) and Mexico City to demonstrate our intent internationally and to learn
from and share learnings with other cities.”
Proposer: Councillor McMullan
Seconder: Councillor Long

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Illegal Puppy Trade
“That this Council notes the USPCA ‘Puppy Dog Fortunes’ Report recognising, with concern,
the scale and seriousness of the illegal puppy trade and the abhorrent neglect, cruelty and
suffering caused to animals. It reaffirms its support for Lucy’s Law and supports the ‘Justice
for Reggie' Campaign.
Accordingly, the Council resolves to write to the Minister of the Department of Agriculture,
Environment and Rural Affairs, and the Minister for Agriculture, Food and the Marine in the
Republic of Ireland, to express its concerns and to urge the Ministers to:
- Introduce Lucy’s Law as a matter of urgency, enacting the necessary changes
proposed by the Justice for Reggie campaign;
- To close the legal loophole that exists within licensing of breeding
establishments, allowing individuals to breed litters from multiple breeding
bitches without a license;
- Raise, or give Councils the power to raise, breeder licence fees to deter the
commodification of puppies via mass breeding and create a central database of
licenced breeders across all councils, with unique identifiers assigned to each
breeder;
- Make changes to microchipping, including requirement for a new unique
number for puppies related to their breeder, so that puppies can be traced back
to their point of origin, and a point of responsibility;
- Make mandatory that all breeders arrange, and must provide documentation for
veterinarian visits for new-born puppies to enable robust inspections and
promote animal welfare;
- Require all sellers, selling forums and sites, to conduct breeder verification and
to ensure traceable provenance for each animal advertised and sold, and
introduce higher penalties for those who break the law, to eradicate cruel
breeding methods and inhumane practices.”

Proposer: Councillor Flynn
Seconder: Councillor McKeown

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Insulation Inspection and the Provision of Insulation
“This Council recognises the lengthy delays NIHE and Housing Association tenants across
Belfast are facing when it comes to insulation inspections and insulation being provided, the
absence of adequate insulation only compounds the problems arising from fuel poverty facing
many citizens this winter. This council notes the warning provided by the Utility Regulator that
Northern Ireland households are facing energy bills around £1,000 higher than last year.
The Council will write to the Department for Communities Minister requesting a review of the
affordable warmth scheme as the current threshold for support is to low reflecting rising costs
facing households earning more than £23,000. This council will also write to the Department
for Communities Minister requesting a public review exercise for NIHE and Housing
Association tenants to detail experience accessing insulation for their homes from their
housing provider."
Proposer: Councillor Heading
Seconder: Councillor Lyons

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Winter Fuel Payment Scheme/Retrofitting of Homes
“Council notes with alarm the rising energy costs which will deliver a winter of pain for many
people across Belfast. Council expresses its real concern that people could lose their lives
due to this poverty this winter, and the impact rising energy costs are having on people’s health
and well-being.
Council recognises this is an emergency situation and will write to the Stormont Executive,
calling on it to enact emergency actions to protect people such as extending the winter fuel
payment scheme. Council will also request an urgent meeting to address how it can work in
tandem with the Executive to provide and deliver this support, where necessary.
Council recognises long term approaches are also required to address the energy crisis which
continues to worsen and will, therefore, include in its letter to the Stormont Executive a request
that it organises and funds, where necessary, the mass retrofitting of homes.”
Proposer: Councillor Ferguson
Seconder: Councillor Michael Collins

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Support for Higher Education Staff Strike Action
“Council notes that four in five higher education staff are struggling with workloads, 86% have
been directed towards support for mental health, and over 30% of workers are not on fixedterm contracts.
Council further notes the disparity in pay for both women and BAME higher education staff,
and that these are among the key reasons why higher education staff in 58 universities,
including local institutions Queen’s University and University of Ulster, have overwhelmingly
voted for strike action.
Council recognises the efforts of these workers, through their union UCU, to resolve these
issues, and the reality that strike action is a final resort for those who are invested in delivering
higher education to young people.
Council acknowledges that it has a role in supporting workers fighting to win decent pay and
conditions in their workplace, and therefore will adopt a position of supporting the strike action,
and commit to writing to the managements of higher education institutions in Belfast, at which
UCU workers have balloted for strike action, encouraging them to deliver on these demands.”

Proposer: Councillor Matt Collins
Seconder: Councillor Michael Collins

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
STANDARDS AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Subject:

Standards and Business Committee: Members Internal Dispute
Resolution Protocol

Date:

23 November 2021

Reporting Officer:

John Walsh, City Solicitor / Director of Legal & Civic Services

Contact Officers:

Sarah Williams, Governance and Compliance Manager

Restricted Reports
Is this report restricted?

Yes

No



If Yes, when will the report become unrestricted?
After Committee Decision
After Council Decision
Some time in the future
Never

Call-in
Is the decision eligible for Call-in?

Yes



No

1.0 Purpose of Report or Summary of main Issues
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update Members on the next steps in relation to the draft
Members Internal Dispute Resolution Protocol and to seek agreement to hold a workshop to
discuss the protocol following the next Committee meeting in January 2022.
2.0 Recommendations
2.1 It is recommended that the Standards and Business Committee agree to review the draft Local
Resolution Protocol at a workshop which will follow the next Committee meeting in January
2022.
3.0 Main report
3.1 Members received a presentation on a draft Members Internal Dispute Resolution Protocol at
the workshop which followed the first meeting of the Standards and Business Committee on 26

Page 17

October. Members noted that participation in the protocol is on a voluntary basis and that its
purpose is to provide an internal mediation mechanism for the prompt resolution of low level
disputes between individual members of Council in relation to their behaviour towards each
other. It was agreed that further discussion would be required on the process behind the
protocol and the implications for Members who decided to participate.
Next Steps
It is proposed that officers will present and explain the processes behind the draft protocol at a
workshop which will follow the next meeting of the Standards and Business Committee in
January 2022. If approved, awareness training on the protocol will be rolled out to all Members
in February 2022.
3.2 Financial & Resource Implications
No financial or resource implications attached to this report.
3.3 Equality or Good Relations Implications/Rural Needs Assessment
Any equality, good relations and rural needs assessments implications will be subject to the
usual screening processes.
4.0 Appendices
4.1 N/A

Page 18

